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Sath Toun Mistory

The site of farth Carolina’s oldest. incorporated toun, Bath, 1s Tocated on
the north shore of 014 Toun, or Bath, Creek at fts function with Back Creek, on

bay feeding southward fnto the Pasplico River. The earliest extant map on which

s general vicinity is given a nase fs John Unite’s 1985 *Wap of the East Const
.-fron Drawings for Raletah's voyage, 1565

He calls the ares Seco, probably
because 1t was part of the territory belongin to the Secotan Indfans, 3 tribe
o occupid the penfrnsula between the Albcaare and Panplfco Sounds and the Tand
At the couth of the Parplico River. The Secotans were part of the Klgonquin
roup uhich extended from Canads dovmward fnto forth Carolira.

The second sapmaker to associate  specific nase with the Bath Toun ared
s Garhard Mercator Hondius, whose 1606 vork, “Virginiae Tten et Floride..."
calls the Tocation Cotan, the name of a.village of the Secotan Indians.? However,
Willen J. S1aeu on his 1660 sap "Virgintac partis australis et Floridae..

Sdentifies the same area as Secotan.

o Farrer, vho fn 1651 sketched o portion of North Carolfna on his "Wap
of ¥irginta discovered ta ye hills.

depiced an Inéfan village in the general
Tocation of Bath Touns he labelled 1t Sccotan, the nase which Hercator fondius
had appliod to the southerneost. shore of the Pasplico River.4 A map by Theodoric.
Defiry fdentiied the sase general area as Cotan. Thus, there 1s o genersl
consensus arong these early cartographers that the Secoten Indians were 1iving
o the north side of the Pasplico River and that there was an Indian viTlage in
the general viciatty of Bath Toun.

| According to historfan H.R. Faschal, there vas much bostility between the

cotan Tndians and the Pomoulk, or Pasplico, tribe wose territory extended

o the south and west of the Secotans. By the fourth quarter of the seventeentn

century when explorers and fur traders began to extend their efforts nto the Tond



s1ong the Parplfco Sound and 115 tributaries, they fourd that the Secotans had vanish-

e and that the Tand belonged to the Panplicos. gty on his 1672 mp of

“Carolira® 1abes the Sath Toun ares *014 Fefld.”
In 1681 , when Seth Sothel patented 12,000 acres along the narth side of
the Paplico River, an Indian village called Panplicough Town vas fn the vicinity
of wiat Tater becane the site of Bath Tom.® The precise Tacation of the Indfan
ViTlage is nkiown. s word spread about the advantages offered by the pleasant
Clinate, Tong growing sesson, and the rich land of Carolina, settlenent auickly
spread southvard fnto the area along the Porplico.  An epidemic among the s,
sreat Vortality” by Governor Jotn Archicale’

presumably sma11pox, referred to as
ufekly decimated their papulation, thus apening up ore 1and to the fncresing
Tow of white settlers.

/169 the namber of settlers had sultiplfed until mst of the area boteen
the Albenarle Sound and Pasplico River vas designated 3 political entity, Bath
Gounty, 1n bonor of a Proprictor, Jdohn Lord Granville, Earl of Gath.® Gath county
a5 pernitted to send tvo delegates to the Tegistative assestly.!

Joong the earlfest settlers in the Bath County area were French Hguerots

ho case from Hanakin Tom In Virginia, at the invitation of Dr. Coxe, to settle
on his patents in Pasplico. Their Tmmigration was fnduced by the prospect of
fovorable Tand and climate and the econosfc oppartunities offered by settling
previousty unclasped Tand. 12 This Huguenot settlenent converged along the
Trent River. Later fmigration by Swiss and Germans created the o of llw
sern

Settlesent, prisarfly by Enghishnen, spread toward th site of the old
Indian viTlage, Pasplicough Town. In 1705 Surveyor General of the Colony John
Lawson, Joel Hartin,Sr... and Simon Alderson, a1l of whon cuned plantations 1n

the vicinity of 01d Toun Creek, purchased a sixty acre portfon of & larger tract



from David Perkins, who had been granted it by Goyernor Thoas Cary. On arch 8,
1705 they ncorporated thelr purchase and sade 18 3 town. They called it Bath Toun
in honor of the Earl for whon their County vas raned

Land xas surveyed and set aside for a church and glabe, public butldings,
Farket, and o town comon which was for public use as & park, pasture, and woodiat.'®
The toun consisted of seventy-one 1 acre 4 pole Tots, the musbering of uhich 15
depfcted on the 1807 copy of the 1766 Bath Toun Plan. Hater Streat, rumning
Rorth to south and paralieling 014 Town Creak, fntersected with Front Street,
Which ran esst-vest and bordered the vater's edge to the south. Vater Street.
was parslieled by King Street, on Which fronted the tom comon. Carteret Sireet,
Which ran esst to est, comected the 0.’ A1 streets were, by Taw, Intended
o be one hundred feet wide. .

Fron the tine Bath Toun Tots were avadlable for sale, transactions proceeded
Vigorously. Gne fndividual, Hathaniel byersdale, purchased a Tot on February 11,
1705, & mnth prior to Baths Act of Incorporation. The deed of sale refers to
3 former owner, Jacob Conrow (Carrow), & French Huguenot.fron Wanakin Toun.'%
Mowever, the first sale of lots after the Act of Incorporation occurred on Septenber
27,1705 when 30 Tots were conveyed by Town Commiss oner John Lawson o nunerous
individus] owners. It should be noted that asong these first owers s a second
French Huguenat, Or. Maurice Liedllyn. A examination of these early desds of
conveyence cemonstrates that Tot sales were nunerous fn the first qurter of the
elanteenth century and thet the 1ndivida) Tots changed hands mary tioes, perhaps
indicating that they were bought speculatively.

Bath Toun, fran its inception, wes thought to present great prosise.  Situated
on 2 navigable satersay 1n & readily dofensible Tocation, the town vas well
supplicd with gane, Shel1fish, fish, fow) ond other natural resources capable,
of supporting an expanding population. So great sas Bath Toun's proatse that in



1700, Five years before 1t incorporation, Dr. Themas Bray. the founder of the
Soctety for the Propagation of the Gospel, the Anglican Church's organtzation
ssenbled

Mdose aission was supplylng clergy and Vibrartes 1o the Colontes
& sassive 1,000 volume 1ibrary valued at 50E, intended for the inhabitants
of St. Thoms Parish fn Bath County. These books were to provide both a parachial
and & “Layman's* Vibrary. '€ The 1ibrary’s volumes were neither housed rar
utilized as originally intended.

The Reverand Jotn Ursstone, in corresgondence with the Soctety for the
e rost obscure {nconsiderable

Propasation of the Gospel in 1711 temed Bath
Blace in the country.~'7 o agatn conplatned in duly 1714 that “the gentry of
Bath would ke waste paper of their books rather than that the clergy should
have then. 1% Ho further fndicated that the books "l Tn a1) prabability

serve a5 3 Bonfire to the Indfans.”'? Wnile that s not, Titerally, ta be
ehelr fate, through scattering and disuse, over the years the ibrary dvindled
€0 only one extant voluce.

WiT14am Gordon, o visited Bath Toun fn 1709, wrote that 1t consists of
about. twelve houses and 15 the only toun fn the province...1 must own 1t 15 ot
the unpleasantest part of the country, nay, Tn a1 probability 1t will be the
center of a trade, as faving the advantage of a better nlet for shipping and
Surrounded with the rost plessant of savamah, very useful for stocks of cattle.d
This optiatstic view, hawever, was never truly realized. The Tuscarora ar
Struck Bath Toun a reeing blow from which 1% never fully recovered.

In ot

Septesser 1711, while on a trip of exploration, John Lowson and his
friend, the Baron Christopher Degraffenresd, were captured by Tuscarora Indlans.
Durthg thetr periad of captivity the Indians revealed to Degraffenreid thetr

Intention of waging & large scale war 1 forth Carol i, to be directed against
the white residents along the Pasplico, Neuse and Trent Rivers and Core Sound.




The Indtans haped to drive out the White sctelers from thair lands and to retal fate
for the accumilated attrocities dealt. then by sore whites who had captured and
enstaved their chilaren a5 well 33 the white traders who had reqularly sought

to cheat them.  Dagraffenredd pronfsed 1ot to fight asainst the Indians 1f he

were released and the people of liew Sern were spared atack.  John Luwson, however.
Wt 10t 50 fortunate.  He ot fnto 8 quarrel with one of his captars and was
executed along with one of his o negro servants.

At daun on Septenber 22, 1711 the Indian attack comenced on schedule and
many brutalities ere perpetrated. Hardest Mt were the outlying plantations.
Their nnabitants fled to Bath Toun, New Sern and the Brice Plantation on the
Trent River. KiT1fam Brice and hiz sen, who attempted to restst the sassive
attack, received ro support from the sen In Bath, who remsined in garrison.  They.
pressed forvard briefly, bt fell back agafn to his fortified plantation on the
Trent

Horth Carolfra Governor Myde appeated to Virginta Governor Alexander Spota-
wood for a1, writing that the Indfans had been 1ed t0 belfeve that the white
settlers vere “vagabonds® who would not be assisted by thetr om kind.% Spots-
Wood repled that he could ot of fer assistance unless Virgina's troops could
be provisfoned by forth Carolina. 2

My tawever, vas forthconing from South Garolina.  Captain John Barmuel]
With an aray composed of 33 whites and 495 Indiars arrived fn North Caroli in

riy danuary 1712 to the imense gratitude of the white settlers. Marching
tovard Bath Toun while attacking the forth Carolina Indians and burning their
houses BarmeeT] arrived at his destination on February 10th "to ye fncredivle
Wonders snd amszesent of the poor distressed wratches there. Who expressed such
extrentty of md Say that 1t drew tears from mst of our nen. "2t e later
comented that sbout 100 widows 3nd arghans had gathered there. %




In July 1712 the residents of Bath County sousht exenption from quitrent foss,

Clataing that they were *sorely vorn down fron the var. 25 Christopher Gale Teft

s wife and brother and the rest of his faaily in garrison at Bathtoun. "2

F. W Cooper, writing 1n 1916, clafoed that the resains of this fort could sti11
be seen on the land of doseph Bomer. 23

The Tuscarora tar proved to be of Tong duration. Many of Barmwell's troops
eventually deserted s

though forth Carol s en Sofned with him in the offens v

Barmel, however, Wltisately returned to South Caralina in the late Spriv,
smrting fron the critictsn of the North Carolfna goverrsent who censured hin
for not destraying the Indians.

Goverror Hyde, succeeded ty Thosas Follock, attespted to supply the garrtsans
40 Bath County.  South Corolina again @ispatched troops, this tine under Colonel
s thore, uho attempted to crush the Indian eneny. Finally, by dune 1713, the

Strongest. reststance had baen quashed and Noore returned to South Carolina. n

the elghteen months which followed, seall bands of astile Indians rossed Bath
County, saking fsolated fncursiors. However, on February 11, 1715 these
Indians agreed o 51an » pesce treaty and withdren to & reservation in Hyde
Gounty.Z Even after the truce had boen consumated, an occasfonal fsolated fident
occurred, such a5 the kidnapping in 1716 of Mr. Worsley's son, daughter, and
0 servants, a1l of whon were Tater recovered.

The close of the Tuscarora lar presented Bath Toun with wiat vas probatly
115 darkest hour. Hones and crops destroyed, the nearty plantations burned and

he Bath County population largely dacimated by var and disease, there sas 1ittle

encouragement for the surviving inhabltants. The Reverand Joh Urnstone of Chowan,
whose caustic coments had been previously directad to the Soctety for the Propagation
of the Gaspel regarding the misuse of the Sath Library, again described Bath with
biting sarcasm: Mo expect to haar that famous city of Bath, conststing of nine
Bouses. or rather cottages, once styled the eetropelis and seat of this Governaent.



W1 e deserted. ™) 2.5, Homann an his sap "oatnts Anglorum in Anerica® shows
more settlenent west of Bath Tom than at the tom site per 5.2 Despite these
formidable obstacles, the removal of the Tuscarora senace and the strengthening
Of govermmental authority stimlated a period of crouth and progress at Bath Toun.
Shartly after Governor Charles Eden took the aath of office fn 1714, new
roads were cut. through the wideress;  fnter-colonial trade revived. 1t had
been essencially destroyed during the Indian bars and the Cary Rebellfon, o
religiously inspired conflict between to polarized denomirations, the Quakers
304 the Anglicans. This upward econontc trend was encouraged by pilotage laxs,
emcted in 1715, which recutred that hipping charnels be maintained, marked;
and buayed. 3 Arother prisary impetus in the acceleration of trade ws the

decturation of 5ath as an official port of entry for the collection of custons.

On August 1, 1716 Governor Eden, who then resided at Bath Toun, was petitioned
by Bath's inhabitants to declare 1t & seaport tomn.  The petitioners asserted
that 16 was “the  mnst proper place within the provence to take 1n nasts, Bitch,

Tar, Turpentine, and other faval Stores* and also considered that “great Tracts

Of Land 1ye contiguous to Bath Town which may afford great quntities of Naval
Stores.®  Accordingly, naval stores began to appear comonly 1n 11sts of North
Carolina's exports as they becane a recognized resaurce.

Records show that 1o Bath citizens, Isaac Ottivell and Stephen Goold, served
25 collectors of custons during this period. Until 1736 Bath Town functioned

25 ona of North Carolna’s few custons fnspections. At that tine an fnspection
station was opened on Geracoke Island as well, due to the ncrease 1n smgglfng.

1t was recomanded that the stations at Sath, faanoke and Currituck be discontinued.
It was felt that fnasmch a5 Bath Town was asout seventy afles passage fron the
oceun, shippers could enter, make previous stops, and circument custoas inspection
of their cargo.  Bath, however, continued to maintatn her custons fnspection

ey



Probaly because of the easy access1BIIity of Bath Town, yet ts aloof fnland
Tocation, in 1717 Eard Tesch, batter known as Blackbeard, elected to nake the
Bath Toun area his headauarters after he was run out of llew Providence. He
From that conventent Tocation his

Tocated across Bath Creek at Plun Potnt,
As Bath County was sparcely

sorties harried the cosst from Maire to Florida.
fnhabited, Teach frequently went ashore without restratt.
tores with Tobtas Knfght, Secretary of the Province and collector of customs

He vas on fomilfar.

for the part of math.
Aithough Blackbeard had taken an oath 1n 1717, declaring his remunctation of
piracy. he shortly fitted out a sloop a5 a comon trader and cleared for & tF1p
0 St. Thomas.  In a few weeks he returned with a French ship in tow. Nl clained
o have found Tt adrift at sea and vas allowed to go through custoss nspection.
Mthough undoubtedly accounts of piracy are intermingled with those of
seuggling, piracy was o serfous problen to the elghteenth century forth Carolina
Severa1 proinent torth Coralina officiols were alleged to

shioping industry.
. and Governor

be shaltertng _ the pirates, speciically, Seth Sothel, John Archs

arles Eden.  Therefore, due to the Tack of responstveness by the North Carolina

overnaent officialz, an sl for help s sent ta Virginta Covernor Alexsnder
Spotswaod.  Spotswood, discretely avaiding Virginia's symathy for the pirates,
outfitted tro sloops with crews from British men of war Which were anchared
in the James River. e placed then under the comand of Lt. Robert Maynard.*!
On Hovesber 16, 1718 Maynard's men confronted and engaged Slackbeard near
Ocracoke Istand.  Although the bottle at first seened to favor the pirates, when
Blackbeard charsed aboard Maynard's craft at the head of a boarding party, British
satlors, concesled below deck, rushed out and engaged them fn hand 1o hand combat.

Blacksesrd and na1F of his crew were Killed. The nine surviving pirates were



transported o Virginia where they were tried ond executed.

Collusion between Horth Cardlina officials and the pirates was confirmed
When & recent and cordial Tetter written to Blackseard by Toblas kafght, fncluding
3 menorandun of g0ds received by hin fron Slackbeard, was found on the pirate’s
corpse. Knioht wrote, “Hy friend, If this finds you yet in harbour 1 would
Have you make the best of your way p a5 soon 85 possible. 1 have samething
sore to sy to you than at present T can write. 1 expect the Govenor (Eden) this
nfgnt or tosorrow who 1 belfeve would be 1ikeutse glad to see you before you
o6 Your real ffriend and servant, T. knight.*3 Although Knight dented
recelving the goods resulting from Blackbesrd’s piricy, & search of Knight's
barn as sade by Spotewaod's officers and Bath resident Edward Hoseley.  The
Search reveled the goads 1isted 1n knight's sesorondus.

Inspite of this highly fncriminating evidence, Governor Eden and his Council
publically eronerated Knight, thus confireing fn sany people’s eyes, suspiciors
that the Governor, 100, was aligned with the pirate

Moseley and Haurice Woore demanded to fnspect Knight's records of office.

Denfed this public right by the Governor, Waseley and his men broke fnto Knfght's
house where the records were stored. The Goverror retaliated by fssuing o
warrant for their arrest. Noseley strongly denounced his for this sction and
Ciataed sedition on the part of the Governor. In the course of Judictal process,
the Court dectared Noseley quflty and sentenced him to pay a 100 fine and to

be fnelfgible to hold any b ic office for three years. Goverar Eden o
befors Moseley's sentence was ulfilled

Shartly after Eden's denise, George Burrington becase Governor. He soon
aligned isself politically with Hoseley. Chief Justice Christopher Gale, o
1ifelon restdent of Bath Toun, 1ed the opposing political party and fought

sy of urrington's policies. A san of violent terper, Barrington was o intolerant



of Gale as the exbodinent of his oppasition, that he threstened to “s1it Gale's
nose. crop his sars, lay him o frons...and blow up his house with gunpowder. S
Gae vate & successful appe) AN Breington 1 e Loves Progrietorss te.
as subsequently resoved from office. 1t 15 interesting to rote that during this
early pertod, Moseley and Gale owned neighboring lots 1n Bath Toun, wheress tho
other principals in this pol1tical drama, Tobias Knight and Charles Eden, a1s0
restdad in the comunity.
Aditions) cxamples of the temperanent of the s 15 revesled fn court

records. One Bath Tounsnan, Hi11fon Doyle, was charged with ste
fron ki1 e

ing goods
In retribution on August €, 1722 toyle was "tied o
the tale of a cart and whipped on the bare back with thirty-nine stripes
through Edenton and Bath. 46

A year Tater, & Bath Town spinster raned Mary Cotton was convicted of
Stealing “tw white cotten Vimen sheats, o Tinen shirts, one indow curtain,
 chest of drawers, and white hosaspun dosssk cloth.” She was “to receive thirty-
one Tashes on her bare back at the uhipping post, post 100 % sterling for her
5000 behavior and court costs” with the additional penalty that should she fail
o comply with payment of bond and fees, that she *should be Sold to the highest

a

bidder wbo vould transpart her aut of the colony.
In St111 snother eptsode, the valatile forser Governor George Burrington,
then s restdent of Edenton, was accused of assaulting Bath Town resident Roger
Kenyon with a Firear.‘® 1t 15 perhaps relevant that Roger Kenyon by then 1ived
n the hame formerly occupled by Burrington’s hated adverss

Cortstopner Gate.
By 1740, according to St. Thomss Parish's. resident clorgymn, the Reverand
John Gorzta, fnspite of his many baptisns, Bath Town sti11 had *deeply rooted
adattery, ncest, blasphery and a1l kinds of profananess.”*? The Jail in whieh

Sone of Bath County"s alleged simers would have been Tncarcerated and the court-



Pouse fn which they would have been tried,uere located on llater Street, according
€ Sauthier's 1769 map.  However, by 1765 the Assenbly had rated that the Courthouse
and prison vere i "great decay and so rulhous 3 condition that the courts camot

be held therein ror prisoners detained....the Tot being very low, sunken, and

Snconvenient. 50

It f5 interesting to note that the First courthouse had not been constructed
on ot 62, which n 1705 was designated as the site of that proposed facility.
1t 15 o of fnterest that Mater Street Tots 30 and 31 vere sold to the St. Thoms

Parich churchuardans years after Tot 61, next Lo the courthouse, had been designated

a5 chureh property and Tater becane the church site.
From the earliest days of the efghteenth century Bath Toun had functioned
a5 0 meeting place for the Court of Pleas and Qurter sessions for Bath county. **
Bath County quitrents were a150 to be paid there. 5% Bath was represented n the
Rssenily by tvo delogates even though 1t never achieved the ity fonily winimus
restdency requirenent.
Through the yeors 3% various Govervors restded, albeft temorarily, in Sath
o, political 11fe continued to be & central focus of the comunity. Honever,

by 1755 the five Commissfoners of what vas by then Besufort County wers appofited

to build & courthouse, pi1lory, and stacks on the land of Thomas Bomer, Jr., at
the site of what tuenty years Tater Secare the tomn of ashington. >

During the years i which Bath Tow served as a center of overmment the
toun undoubtedly bustled perfodically with activity. County residents and governnent
officials comverged upon the town for these occasfons, finding lodging with the
Tocal restdents or i nearby taverns.

One such tavern, Abrahas Guncan's, Tocated on the road fron ew fern o
Bath, vas regularly frequented by the Governors of North Carolfna and other



civil officians. 5 an incicent occurred at Duncan's o in Decenber 1746 and fmvolved
some naneless patents sianed by the Covernor, who vas staying there. These patents
e “seen in Mr. Griffetn's rooe" uho was also lodging at Duncan's. The controversy.
over these patents extended through three years of 1itigation. %
A M. Howant was 31so paid for accomodstions several tines during this
period. Thus, the remval of the County Court to fts new site as unpopular.
ith sy Bath citizens because of fts negative sconosic Teplications.
During the second and third quarters of the eightoenth century trade and
comerce in Bath Toun reached its zenith. On Decenber 21, 1729 8 ferry was
estabiished from Bath Town to Cor Point; according o Taw o other ferries.
could be Tocated within ten ailes of the site.”? A Freneh traveler who visited
Bath in 1765 complatned that the ferryride vas three fles Tong, fncluding
one afle up the Cresk. % The Bath Town forry operated throughout the efghteenth
- century.
That Bath Toun vas achfeving prominence as o visble town 15 evidenced by
it being depicted on numeraus efghtenth century raps which are generally devord
of minor detail. A 1738 document, "R New Map of Virgiata husbly Dedicated to ye Rt.
onble Thomms Lord Fafrfax® by an unkaoun cartographer, identifies Bath, though
¢ 15 considerctl, southard of his main ares of interest. % Quite predictably,
Evard Moseley, o Bath restdent, abelled his hose town on his 1738 Hep of
North Caral1n0.+€0 8y 1744 Bath appears on & map of “Albemarle and Parglico
Sound® by an unkno mapeaker. ! Other cartographers vorking in the mid-elghteenth
century, notably Gmanse] Bonen in his 175452 ang 17637 versions of *A tap of

tre British feerican Plantations extending from Boston in New England to Georsfe.
Carte des Possessions Francolses ot nglofses

21t unkeown cartographers maps,
Dans e Cansda et Partie de Loutsiana® fn 1755% and A tlw and Accurate Map of

the English Expire i larth Anerdca ® in 1756% specifically label Bath Town



thaugh their raps. are ot greatly detatled. The updated (1753) versfon of 3.5
Honann's “Doninda Anglorum in rerfca®®S  shows Sath as daes John Collett on

s 1770 . “Horth Caroline.*® Thoass Kitchen's 1763 execution of " of the
United States in Horth Aeerica®® fncludes Sath as does & “Survey of the Ses
Goast® done in 1798 by an unkrown mapaaker. £ In 1743 an exstomest e, Just
rarth of 8ath, was run, setting apart  the King's land fron that of Lord
GranviTle. A Bath resident, Matthew Rovan, sade the disbursenents for this
survey.

O of the two mst singularly useful raps deplcting Bath Toun 15 the 1807

copy of the February 26, 1766 “Plan of the Toun of Bath*?! which shows each *
Lindividually mmbered Tot, Tabels the courthouse and church Tots, identifies
feach street by nase, depicts the wharves and ferry poit along 014 Town Creek,
and st importantly, shows nine structures as being positioned on the fndividual
lots. Tnis, coupled with the carly Beaufort County deedbooks, sakes it possible
to trace the original ounership of almst every Tot fn Bath Toun, fron the tine
of fnftial purchase. It should be noted that Tots fronting on Water Street
extendad across the street. (fe. Tots § though 32), whereas those facing Front
Streat teminate at the street ftself. According to the toun legislation,
Jaterfront 1ot owners wishing to purchase the property directly across the street
in front of then could do 50 for ten shillings, provided “that the Principal
Strests in the 5aid Toun shall be ane Hundred foot wide at lesst and that 10
person shall Bu11d or Erect any Edifice, house, or Building on the Lands 1ying
before the fronts other than Cellars ar vaults whose covering shall ot be

3bove Ten foot above the graund that the Prospect of such as bufld in the said
Town say ot be Incomaded or hindered."? Other legislation reflecting the
delberate intention of mking the town attractive required that Bath mabitants



keep the sereat of their toun clean and clear.”®
A cxamination of Bath's esrly deeds shows that the fronts of lots were quickly
purchased as soon 35 1t s legally passible. Tuenty Tot fronts were bought
fimedtately.™ rerlecting, perhaps. ther ouners! comercal acmen.  Occasfonally,
by the mid-eighteenth century, the fronts of lots were scld  separately from
thetr central, rore fnland portion.’®

Some real estate transactions refer to the Tot fronts a5 “inproved,” as does

the Apri) 20, 1717 deed of IsabeTla Lawson, daughter of John Lovson, who inher{ted

T0ts 5 and 6 from her father. ™S In contrast, Tots 16, 17 and 18 belonging to
Moore's daed also reflects an frportant

Maurice Moore were called "t fsproved.”
tenet in the plamed development of Bath Town, that he "shall erect and bufld or.
cause o be built one habitable house on the safd lot within one year.”! Rthaugh
that particular stipulation was made, it agparently was ot enforced very vigorously,
1 the varfous travelers! accounts of Bath Town's maximm total of nine to trelve
houses are to be accepted as being accurate. This tuelve ponth construction
requtrement, howerer, could account. for the Targe turnover. in ot cunerships 1n
the first quarter of the sighteenth century.
Athough Bath’s 1717 legislation goveraing the construction and matatenance.

of ot fronts prevented the eraction of bulldings whose heloht would obstruct.

the view fron the town, by 1723 this early Tegislation vas someuhat 1iberalized.

Front ot cuners were pernitted to construct wharves “into the sater so far as
o the edge of the chamel." By 1745, the Assesdly passed legislation providing
for & fence to encirele the town, with one sate Targe enough to acconodate carts
and another ssaller one for sen and horses. The February 1766 plat shows the
diteh which vas the tom Saundary Tine to the Toun Gate. At the same time the
taun fence and sate were approved, the construction of arshouses, stores., and

otehe bufldings on front Tots was also given offictal sanction.™®



That ruing vas quickly sefzed pon by Tot cuners along the waterfront.
Occastona] deeds refer to an edifice upon  lot, for example, the April 4, 1754
deed between Jases Calef, narchant, srantor, and Jobn Watson and Alessnder Cairnes.
perchants, grontees, for 1ot 6, which 1ists " brick storehouse standing an the
1763, conveytng Tot 9, refers to a
Hovever, other vaterfront ot deeds fail to

bullaing wdth & ouble chimmey.

Indicate the presence or absence of any structures thercon, by totally fafling
10 houses, bufldings,

o elucidate or by eploying the standard Tegal Jargon
vaters, orchards, garders, etc.”

More personal fnformation 1s to be gleaned from a review of Bath's early deeds,
spectically, the occupations of soee of the varfous ot cuners. One otes that
Nathaniel 811, ower of  vaterfront Tot, # 8, was a sariner. Jobn Brow, 3
butcher, 5014 1ot # 10 to John Marchant, & waterean. Thosas Harding, & shipbalder,
owned Tots 14 and 27 in the First quirter of the elohteenth century, whereas Or.
Patrick taule owned Tot 15. Kary other Tots fn Bath belonged to publfc officials
Such a5 Charles Eden, Chrtstopher Gale, Rager Kenyon, Edward oseley, Adum Hyde,
Thomas Garey, Waurice Noare, Robert Palner and others

Fron the begioning of the elghteenth century the vaterfront Tots along 014
o Creek increasingly were bought by nerchants. John Porter purchased lots 30
and 31 and their fronts fn 1717, Jotn Clark, serchant, along ith s daughter,
Hary, bought adjacent property, Tots 27, 2 and 29. John Sdley, another erchant,
acquired Tots 19, 20, and 21, Lots 5, 6, and 7 changed hands several tines among
Varous serchants, Sieon Alderson, Jares Galef, Edhard Horcott, Jom Kallfson. and
3. Clainet, John Hatson and Alesander Cafrnes, Hil1an Hace, Jobn Barrow, a Hr.
HIN, Matthen Rovan, and Patrick Rovark.®!

Aithough the 1766 ton plan does not show Thosas Harding's shipbutding
bustness a5 such, the 1765 French visitor to Sath stated that "there are several



Vessels bullt here, and on other parts of this s well as on News River, but a1l
seall on account of the st

the tom in 80 ites fron the or.“% This account
fsplies that Harding’s ships were provably ighters, or flat bottaned boats,
rather than larger scale ocean-going eraft

Sone 1dea of the appearance of Bath Town with its intermingling of houses and
busineses my be gained from this unsigned advertisenent fn the duly 25, 1766
ssue of Purdie and Dixon's Virginta Gezette:

To be s, at athtun, {1 torth aral s, 8 o
o Storied hign i four e
i

and grisu
indred Tand Fiateg 3100 the Sirin

S i T e o el

Althoush the advertiser doesn't reveal His dentity, the house description

readily satches. that of the Robert Falner hane, 3ti11 standing todays the autlying
Broperty descrised, when compared with rural 1and fdentified by 1770 cartographer
dohin Collett a5 betng fabert Paloer's acreage, also Sibes.
Other virgina Gazette
around Bath. On Febraary 6,
Tans

aévertisements a1zo describe the contryside fn and
1772, Thamss Humphrtes offered for sale " tract of
-about ten miles below Bathtoun...plessantly situated on the Bay, 15 & ood
Place for stock and affords plenty of foul, fish and oysters and the sa1d land
s twlerable for cropping.

Arother advertisenent,

aced by Tsasc Patridge and run in the April 25, 1777
ssue of the Virginia Gazette, describes the appearance of the land directly

across 014 Tom Creek from Bath:
A Tract of Land contatning 502 acres.

o s el e s, e
brick DuslInghouse with 5ix

oppesie the tom of suh about

erected, at

penst, & 5et of works



for Claning sa1d rain for mrkets and o grent Plenty of s to de
a5 soson of e yar a1 Pl i Bhcine' . el
85

et a0 an"Semient R Tor. Stk of 411 Kin

Aithoush 8ath Toun's setting and climate saunds aleost idylTic. the area
s occastonsTly assaulted by tropical storss, such s the Septanber 1769 hurricane
which, at nearby Edenton, levated the tides ten to tuelve feet sbove rormal. swept
vy tauses, arehouses, and wharves and tossed ships fnto the voods.®  Records
anined reveated o details describing the effects s stors had on Bath Touns
aTthough 1t seens to have been generally devastating o the countrysice.

Further fns1ght on the appesrance and character of Bath Toun may be gafoed
fr0m 2 careful study of C.J. Sauthler’s Moy 1769 mp,” Plan of the Town and Port.
of Bath n Beaufort County, forth Carotina. "7 This sap 15 one in a serfes done
by Sauthler of varfous North Carolina tows. such as New Bern, Hal{fax, Edentan,
and Wilaington. O each mp he Identified by nase what he cons dered significant
potnts of interest.

In the case of Bath Town, Seuthier labelled the church, aol, burfal ground,
courtause, and the resdence of Fobert Paleer.  Several lots e depfcted a3
having bufldings on then and/or are i scoe way inproved. Mharves are shown as

bufldings on the fronts of five Tots.  Unfortunately, when the 1769 s collated

Wit the but1dings shown on the aleost contemsarary 1766 Bath Toun P1an,® it

appears that Sauthier's sketch hus sceved settlement to the rarth. As vell,
certain bulldings, somhat described in deads, and being owed by serchants
along the waterfront, are osfted. %

In an effort to gain & better understanding of Sauthfer's seaning when he
depfcted certain types of butldings by drawing & cross-hatched squire, 1, &
conparison was made with Ms other North Carolina saps. One extant buflding shown
o the Bath map without an "x", buflt of brick and positively identified, was the

Ghurch; Tikee'sa, the courthouse et ne . Tha 24411 exta=t “alner house, of




frane construction, a1s0 lacked an "x". Therefore, the "x*'s are unikely to denote.
brick or frase construction.

In marked contrast, the gucl s “xed as were
several saal) bufldings near the Palnar residence and along the shoreline.

In Halifax, the toboceo store, herp store, and plahouse vere “x'-ed, though
the guo1 and courthause were mot

In Wiiaingtan the stilhouse and taryard were
ed, whersas 1w Bern only the bufldings adjacent to wharves ere 5o marked
This has Ted to the concluston that the "s*-ed bufldings were those of & Tower.
Reloht a5 apposed to brick versus frase, structurally or functiomally sfgnificant
or tot. Sauthfer's Gath Tom sap thus Interprated, shows several single story
Butlings slong the fronts of Tots, a feature conforming with the 1715 legisiation
Fequiring that structures Buflt thare st not obstruct the prospect of the town.
In order to gaih 8 full understanding of ichteenth century Sath Town one must

aive speciic consideration to the significance of comerce, particularly the
Forest products related fndustry.

In 1709 when dohin Lawson wrote his Kistory of
Horth Garolina, he comented:
of ines,

there are in Carolfra, at lesst four s
arouing to a great Bigness.

a1 e 1o srerer bomest

e aiords The four great Necessaries, F1ich,
Rasin, and Turpentine; which last o aro exiracted

o e S by

X e and

ey s Hasts
Firde, tnda‘oreat may othr ecastpie there aiin U e el
e st userl Trek 1 She s e ison-Fin serves for i
very el "ne Deari Fini. g0

5 s previously observed, the 171 petition by Bath Tom residents to
Goverror. Eden requesting that 1t be sade & seaport town pointed out that Bath
a5 the mst Togfeal place for ships to Toad sasts, pitch, tar, turpentine, and
other naval stores and also called attention to the large tract of heavily forested
Tand adfacent to Batn. %1 Again, fn 1761, officials comented upan "the sandy

RIS with foxtafled o long Teaf pine, the best for tar pitch and turpentine. %



In the elghteenth century, seventy percent of the tar, more than fifty

percent of the turpentine, and tuenty percent of the pitch exported from a1l
2 s

the colonfes to England cam fron the pine forests of North Caralina
production was encouraged by Parlianent’s 1705 faval Stores Gaunty Act which
pald 4 2 sterling per ton of tar and pitch and 3 € per ton of rosin and turpentine. ¥

A unasus), but. articulate, comentary on the value of exparted Bath County
naval products appesrs fn Edhard Salter's January 6, 1734 will. Salter fnstructs.
ot Arrington, who 15 1iving on his Tand, to Toad Salter’s brigentine with tar
for export, the sale of which was to insure that Salter's son would have the
Financial capita to becoss a merchant. %

Rosin, or crude turpentine, for the eighteenth contury manufactre of
Spirits of turpentine, was obtained by Gutting converging chamnels 1n 8 standing
areen tree.  Mhere these chamnels met 3 wooden trough collected the rosin shich
o204 out.  Bark was stripped off so that the hest of the sun would accelerate the
yie1ding of the rosin. % Crude turpentine had 11ttle fntrinsic value other than
the fact that fron 1t could be manufactured the refined product, spirits of turpen-
tine. Agproxinately 32 gallons of crude turpentine or rosin were required to
Y1614 three gaTlons of turpentine spirits, or rore than a ten to one ratio. Efghteenth
century customs.records for North Carolina show that the musber of barrels of
Crude turpentine beig exported far utweighed that of the nusber of barrels of
tarpentine spirits betng shippec out.”

Wl ot first glance the ratio of discarded product to usable yield may

Hegro staves, once fnstructed,

appear unecooatcal, this vas ot n fact the ca
could readily gather the rosin, pour 1t into barrels and seal thea ready for
It vas estinated that one man, overseeing & el to Fifteen acre area,

market.
Horeover, turpentine

could produce fron 100 to 200 Barrels of rosi per season.




distiNlation was not fn ftself an feportant ndustry i North Caroling prior to
0.

Taramaking required far sore sophisticated technique than 41d rosin-gatheri.
Deaiood wss First split and chopped fnto seall pleces, which were piled fn the
center of & spectally constructed kfln, usually about 0 fest in diasster. This
KITn had o clay floar with o drain fale Tn the center which discharged nto &
pipe Teading outside the kiln. Once wood was piled to 3 hatght of 13 to 14 feet .
flaring cutward towrd the top, a thick Wl of turf was 1aid over the entire pile.
The voodpile Within s then fgnited through temarary openings in the turf. Through-
out the processing of the wood the blaze had to be carefully ronitored and the

Sroper smmunt of ventilation mafntained via these turf “vant-holes.” Too Tittle

seration could cause the Kiln to explode; 100 much could produce 4 useless yleld.

Once the tar was collectad fn barrels, 1t had o be rotated every three to

four days or a tuenty day perfod. This would cause any condensed watervapor

t rise to the top where ft could be draun off and replaced with sore tar. These
%

.

U1 barrels e then ready for marke

A second type of tar, called *green tar," s mde froa trees which were only.
partialy desd and had been stripped of their bark. Often trees which had for
mary years been used in turpentine production ended their 1 ives by becostng
“green tar” vood.

The ranufacture of pitch was, In coporison, relatively sieple. Tar was
burned in great  caldrons or n subtervanean pits. 1t was frequently stirred
and tested for proper consistency by dropping a srall quantity into vater. Once
the tar reached the pitch state, the fire vas sothered and the hat pitch packed
Into barrels. Three barrels of tar vould produce about tho of pitch.!"!

Efforts were sade by fnspection officials to assure thit certain standards

of quality were set by a1l mval stores exported fron the colony.  Hovever, based



usan the conplatots to be found in extant records, these regulations were rot
strictly enforced. The reasons for the production of an Inferior product were
many and varted. 1% owever, inasmch a5 the bulk of the work was done by the
negro slaves of the colony, Tt 5 ot remariable that the British continued,

thaugh zomewhat disgruntied, to depend pon North Cardl1na for 1t naval stores.
Statistics shoving forth Carolina mval stares exported to England desonstrate

tnat this trade pesked n the period 1750 to 1776.'9% North Garolina’s naval stores
were 4150 exported to New England. A well, during the Revolutionary War they

were exported to Virginta for use by the State Navy.'® During these years,

Bath Toun, while exporting significent smounts of naval stores. did ret approach
the quantittes shipped frem Roanoke, Beaufort, o Srunswick. % Thus, dath

never quite became a3 significant fn thot industry as her orlginal fahabitants.
rad oped.

It should be roted that rany other Kinds of forest products bes des naval
Stores were made fn North Carolina on a Targe scale comercial basts fn the
etonteenth century. Boords, plarks, staves, heading, hoops, hogsheads, posts.
aars, and masts were produced although only three {tess, shirgles, staves, end
savn Tusber e of mafor taportance. %%

A comparitive study of mid-efhteenth century exported wood products. conducted
by H. R, Merrens, shows that mst of the sovn Tusber cane from the Part Brursuick
Ares in southern North Carolina, hereas sore shingles and staves cane from the
Roanoke and Currituck aress. 17 Aleost a1) sawn lusser was pirewcod. readily
suadlable fn bountiful quantities in the Cape Fear Valley. A few dozen laroe
savm1s, 3ftuated on bodies of water Which provided a pover source and s well,
transportation to market, produced most of the lumber exparted fron the colony by
the third quarter of the eighteenth century.

Relatively 1ttle slave Tabor was required fn this industry. although neval



store production was often carried on simultaneously. % The ranufacture of
Staves and shingles, however, required actual manual Tabor, much of which could
be perfomed by slaves. These ftess were usually made from hardwds, the type
of forestation occurring mre comonly as ane proceeded rorthard.'%? The suasm
and botton nd produced several varities of oak suitable for raking staves,
Mhereas white codar and sypress wood were excellent for shingle-saking.

Beyond the asount of Bath comerce directly attributable to the forest
products Industry, Bath 41d not figure significantly In lorth Carolina’s export
business.In Nerrens! comparative studles of customs records from five comarable
Horth Garolina Tocal ties, nasely Currituck, Both, Roanoke, Sesufort, and Brinsuick,
Indian corn exportation which totaTled nearly 17,000 bushels. 10 1772 cluded
only about ten percent ariginating in Sath. Other years studied showed Bath well
behind her sister comunities in this regard.  Siatlarly, in studying rice
and indigo exportation betueen 1768 and 1775, Bath's proportion of this trade
s inconsequentian. 11 The ivestock products ndustry was a significant part
Of North Carolina’s colontal econosy whenever beef and pork were sld, it was
alaost slhays exported northvard on the hoof, In large droves, to Virginia and
potnts beyond. 12

Most certatnly a maber of ships and Tighters called Sath Toun their hone
port.. In a 1725 court case, John Dowden, who omed a schooner whose hose port
s 8ath Tomn, alleged that John __phil1ips, a mariner, had stolen his anchor.'?
A acvertisenent n the Wil fassburg Virginda Gazette of purdie and Oixon, on

Moy 16, 1766 stated that the ship Jenny burthen 250 tuns or thereatets, John
Thonas, master, now 1ying at Gath Toun, orth Caroina, will take fn go0ds, on
Tiberty, for London, or to be let an charter to any port in Britain. "% As s
previously noted, several mariners and vatersen called Bath Tomn thelr hone.
torth Caralina’s extant calontal records indicate that sany ships entersd



and cleared at Both during the afé-elghtcenth century. 1'% These records also show
that the pilatage Taws which required that shigping channels be marked and buoyed
needed constant enforcenent by the colonta) goverrment.

1755 antry in the record describes the efonteenth century technique
enployed for deepening chamnels, as “ships drawing sbove B feet of water raw
can't go to Bath, Edenton, or Beaufort without unlaading or loading by Vighters.~!16
The sane source indicates that the chamne, once deepencd, would pernit ships
with up 0 12 foot draft to o tntand.’!7

Athough tobaces i colontal North Carola s generally discouraged by the
British governent, in 1773 offical records state that those persons wanting
0 3hip tabscco from Brunsuick, New Bern, and Bath were ot able to have 1t
frspected there Because there were nelther obacco Inspactors nar tobaceo warehouses
St any of these Tocations; a5 & solution to the problem, regular custoshouse
officers were enpovered to inspect tobacco. 1%

A year Tater the records reveal, @ tone of Indignation, that contrary
0 o “regroes and freenen are piloting vessels up rivers to Sath, Edenton,
and e Bern. 119 Exactly how the authorities solved that thorny problen. the
records do ot indica

The records a0 doronstrate, however, good relations
betueen the races. On duly 15, 1775 2 negro insurrection s prevented thanks
to Merrick, & negro slave of Bath mariner Nathanfel Blimn. At the tine Merrick
s assisting Captatn dohnson of White Kaven with a ship of naval stores. 120

During the years of the Revolutionary ar, Bath's shipping trade continued,
though many changes took place. New officials replaced the former Royal appoiintess.
Soong the people themselves, a5 everyuhere 1n the Merican colontes. viewofnts
sore firmly galarized, 3z British and Anerican syspathizers squared off for the
years ahead.

ath Toun's ealthiest citizen and collector of customs., Robert
Palter, unservingly Toysl to the King, Teft his American home for Englanc.'?!



Govermment records show that during e vor years, the Bath Committee of Safety
carried out 1ts duties, the ailitia drilles, silitory recruiters constantly
Sought men, and War stores were trarsported by hip 1nto 8ath Tom for the
benefit of the torth Carolina 11ne. 122

On August 2, 1776 the Comittee of Safety receved salt, smnition, arm,
nd other war saterfel, fn exchange for staves for the Kest Indies. 12 That
same sumer, Thomss Respess vas autharized to purchase gun powder, lead, saf) duck,

osnatargs, coarse Hinan, shoes, blankets, 1

ther and coarse cloths at Bath
for the use of Continenta) troops. 20 According to goverraent records, on Septesber
28, 1776 5 camon vas shigped nto Bath Toun and dfspatched to Edenton, 25 whereas’
Benfonin Hankins 0 a letter to the Governor on February 14, 1780 stated that
678 stand of uskets had arvived at Sath Toun from St. Eustatia. 26 fettles
were purchased at Bath Town for the saking of salt Cor use by American forces. 12
Although the above rportation records attest to the fact that Sath Tomn
continued to serve a5  visble port facility well fnto the Tatter days of the
Revolutionary W, the records of custoss collection of lcers for 1786 and

Tater demmnstrate tat Bath Tom's water traffic was falling fncressingly behind
that of Rounoke, Currituck, and Swsnsborough. 2% Perhaps some Tost comerce
15 attributable to poorly marked o sflted chamels. In 1783 Batn's pilots.
were fired for fncorpetency. 29 Others were subsequently ired but were continu-
ously chided to work rore iligently. 20 Shipping records copiled by Paschal
State that in the mid years of the efghteenth century approximately thirty ships
a yeur entered Fort Bath. By the 1770's this Figure had declined o an average
of seven or eigne a yeor. 13

Athough seagoing trovel vas undoubtedly the single sost significant influence
o the growth and development, and subsequent.declne, of Bath Toun, fnlend



travel also Influenced her growth and wellseing. in the carly days of the eighteanth
century crude trafls conmected Bath with other sparcely populated white plantations.
Later, e distinct roads were opened up a5 Bath County citizens made thefr vay
o B30 Toun,thi seat of goverment. The addition of the ferry also reatly
facilitated travel.  tonetheless, early travel was difficolt and tedious at best.
This s attested to by corly trovelers! accounts as vell as by British postal
system nvestigator, Hugh Findlay, n 1774, who coeplated of the very poor
i1 service. 1%

o early ineteenth century rops depict the toun of Bath, thoush mch detall
15 Tacking.  W11iam Lathan in his 1807 “Hydrographic Hap of Virginta and North
Carolina® depfcts Bath a5 having seven butldings, three of which are on the
waterfront. 32 Tuo roads feed into tom, one from:the narth and one from the
nortiuest. tlew Bern and Nashington are shown a5 belng considerably Targer and

Brazier's 1828 map, "Swanplands Between Alberarle and

more populous. RH.8.
™

Pasplico Sounds® shows Bath as & village of only four houses.
The Nlorth Carolfna State Fapers contan an account of one fnteresting and
unorthodox case nvolving Bath during this perod. The Town Comiss{oners sued
Milson Bayd who audsctously constructed o house on the Town Comuns.  Acts vere
cited dating back to 1729, protecting the public sanctity of the Comons .
Boyd Tost s case and received no comensation for his structure. 35
n exanination of the extant tax abstracts for the nineteenth century does
indecd indicate that Bath s1ipped decper and deeper fnto lethargy. Lot volues
FE11, few, 17 any, voter crafts were registered there, and the population
becae prodonfrately black. Individals Tisted in the folloving tavle are

tasable males, or *polls.® The fluctuation in the munber of Tots 1isted fs

possibly a reflection of those for which tax bills were fssued.
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It 15 nteresting to note the sharp drop fn black pepulation at the close
of the Civil Har. Tax records thereafer are sketchy but fndicate a general trend
of firancial duress, as would be expected during that period. In the last quarter
of the nineteenth century much Bath Tounship land s sold for taxes.



It §5 of spectal significance that by 1657 o boats or ships were registered
St Bath, & o uhich only & hundred years

rider had been & thriving seaport
town bust1 g with comerce.
Towm pont

n Tom
A careful exasination of the Febriary 25, 1766 Bath Tomn Plan shows that lots

5,6, 7, and 8 extend across Nater Stret onto  Tand forn which fs Tabeled Toun

Potnt. Lots 5 and 6 belonged to Surveyor General Jobn Lowson and were conveyed

o his duughter, Isabells. A 1717 deed for the fronts of lots § and 6 refers to

the main portiors of these Tots as “teproved. '3 Thus, according to the requirenent.

hat habitable hauses be constructed on Tots within & year of their purchase,

Lzabella Lavson may have had & el fng bouse In this Tocation by 1717, It has

been suggested that 1729 deed of conveyence between Isabella Lawson's husband,

John Chilly, grantor, and John Jackson, arantee, rotes the presence of “houses,

aardens, yords, etc however this terainolosy was prosably ot fntended to
be taken 1iterally, s 1t 15 the standard Tegal Jargon. Other lots in which
simflar phraseology 15 erployed, according to cartographic evidence, had no
Structures on then. 1t shauld alo be noted that John ChiTly owned severa] other
Tots 0

th Town, fncluding Tots 53, 54, 55, and 56 on King Street,
Interestingly, Jackson's 174D deed to Edward Howcott. refers to “one Mansfon
House, with brick chimey, one Kitchen brick chimeyed, one brick storehouse and
cellar.® The Howcotts attempted to sell the property to Wi11fan Maces however.
the transaction vas apparently ot successful, for ultimately 1t was comveyed by
then to Jases Calef, & merchant. Calef, on April 4, 1754, 50ld the property to
John Hatson and Alexander Cafrmes, also aerchants. The Calef deed refers to

brick storehouse standing an the Tot* but sakes no reference to 8 residence or
outburlatngs. 1



The proerty subsequently passed to Rabert Palner and his son, Wllfan. It
Should be recalled that fabert Palner, at the onset of the Revolution 1eft. for
England.  On Apri] 15, 1766 Wi1lian Palner sold the 1and to Messers 11 and Barrow,
nerchants, 140 who aleost. femediately comeyed 1t to Patrick Rowrk.! tane of
these Tatter deeds contain descriptive data on the *inprovesents” to Tots § and

6. though the fact that the final years of the eighteenth century found the
property passing from serchant to perchant suggests that 1t may have been in
comercial use, perhaps. for warehouses, fnasmuch 45 elghteenth century maps

cords

411 o show 3 wharf in this vicinity. 2 unile carly niveteenth century
indicate that these lots passed through many hands, none of these auners are
thought to have resided there.

The early ounerships of Tots 7 and 8 are essentially distinct from lots § and
& sithough the property 15 contiguous on & relatively sml point of land. Lot 7
s first owmed by WiTl{am Fridiey wia, prior to 1717, conveyed 1t to Thomss Fry.
The Tatter, fn turn, conveyed it to dokn Fry on Warch 11, 1722/23.  Significently,
John Fry i Decenber 1754 conveyed 1t to John Hatson and Alexander Cafres, the
erchants ho only three mnths earlfer had purchased Tots § and 6. Fry's deed
of conveyence refers to Ki11ian Hace next door, ndicating that it vas before
the Honcotes made their second attespt at selling Tots § and 6. After the Vatson-
Catrmes ownership, the property passed to another merchant. 45 sy baren 1770
Wi11iam Bron had so1d the property to Samel ¥ITH1s, perhaps.the sane Wi111s whose
Whare. fronted on lot 14, a5 shown on the 176 town plan. 146

Lot 8, when first spactically fdentified, belonged to PhiTlip Shute during
the second quarter of the elghteenth century, at which tine 1t was S01d to Wi1Tian,
Dunfel. Soon, 1t vas conveyed ta John Brown and subseauently to Wi1liem Brow in
1769, the serchant who also had Just purchased ot 7. In 1770 bromn so1d the



1and to tathantel 811, the mariner who deslt tn maval stores, Blion's son,
WiTliam, 5014 out to Gearge Langley fn 1786,

The archaeological remains uncorered during the 1977-78 Bath Town survey.
are very probably the ressing of & Town Point merchant's varehouse. As vell, the
possble remaing of Nathaniel B1imn's naval stores operation, sost Tikely the
traces of a piteh-aking endeavor, ere Tocated.
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